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The life of a business development professional 
is quite the mystery to so many folks; especially 
in those situations where you are the firm’s 

first business development person (there are plenty 
of us). Too frequently, your colleagues have trouble 
communicating with you simply because they have 
no idea what you do. Whether they’re threatened by 
your existence or just don’t believe in marketing and 
business development as critical efforts to your firm’s 
sustainability, we get lots of odd facial expressions 
fired at us. Fortunately, we have the confidence and 
personality to share exactly what we do, why we’re 
here and most importantly … how we can help! 

I am fairly new to my firm and yes, I am the firm’s first client 
development director. Among many things, I have initiated  
bi-monthly business development meetings with a group of firm 
leaders and those charged with “sales.” It is a process, but I am 
thrilled with our developing transformation from a reactive firm 
to a proactive firm regarding business development. I did recently, 
however, get asked by someone in this group, “What do you think is 
most important?” As you can imagine, I cherished the opportunity 
to answer this question. So, I stood up, went to the white board, 
and gave them five things that I think about ALL THE TIME!

Who Are Our Most Important Clients?
Your most important, or top, clients can be categorized in many 
ways. Typically, they are the clients that provide you with the 
largest amount of work opportunities, have worked well with you 
in the past perhaps, and build projects that fit perfectly in the 
wheelhouse of which your expertise can shine. These are the folks 
that business developers obsess about daily and the folks that need 
to know how much you care about them. In addition to qualifying 
new prospective client organizations, the time spent on your top 
clients is constant. As you might have heard me say in one of 
the 100+ BD workshops I’ve led over the years, “Clients pay our 
salaries!” If you need a reason to focus on them, I’d say that’s a 
pretty good one.

How Do We Search for New Work?
As you’ve already read, I am in the process of creating a more 
proactive approach to business development with my firm. Though 
there might be a little uniqueness to the role of sub-contractor, the 
facts remain the same … the more information you attain early 
and the more insight you have on the needs and goals of a project 
before it goes to bid/RFP, the better your chances will be to gain 
the trust that your team is the most prepared to lead a valuable 
process and create a successful outcome. Plus, as we know, the 
more engagements you have and the more face time you get, the 
more chemistry you can develop with your clients. Your project 
“hit rate” (which is the #1 metric for business development) is 
affected by these three things the most: 

1. Effective due diligence before the RFP—actually getting out 
there and having meaningful conversations and introducing 
potential team leaders to the client

2. Executing an HONEST go/no go effort—being true to your 
format and determining if you can “win” the job, not just if you 
can “do” the project 

3. Leading a proposal and presentation process that is focused 
on the needs of the client and the impact of the project on  
its users—qualifications get you in the door that relationships 
and project impact understanding can win

How Do We Win New Work?
Are you considered a dreaded “commodity” that only wins on price 
or are you a firm that clients trust will bring them the most useful 
knowledge and best value? As a sub-contractor/sub-consultant 
and even as a lead architect or general contractor, it’s sometimes 
a struggle nowadays to get out of the realm of the former. Taking 
the three-step approach listed above will do wonders for staying 
away from that less-than-attractive position. During a recent client 
feedback/performance review meeting (yes, I do them face-to-
face!), a very important client said to me, “Your firm absolutely has 
the best quality of knowledge and workmanship and whenever I’m 
looking for ‘a partner,’ you are the only place I’ll go … the other 
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guys are just cheaper!” For our culture, this is exactly what we want 
to hear. Make no mistake, we know we must always be competitive 
and accurate with our bid proposals, but we also want our people 
and their expertise to be valued when it’s decision time. So, I want 
us to win work because our team, our plan, and our understanding 
of the project’s needs are seen as the best.

How Do We Build/Earn Trust with Our Clients?
To me, very few things are more important than trust when it 
comes to any relationship you pursue. Whether it’s with 
family, friends, industry peers, your 
colleagues, and, of course, your clients, 
trust is the foundation for success. 
During good days or bad 
days, trust gets you through 
just about every situation 
successfully. I recently 
sent out a request to my 
entire office to share their 
sentiments on how we 
earn trust with our clients. 
What I have read so far is 
exactly what I want to hear (and 
precisely what I discussed in a recent in-house 
training session). Responses have included: “We 
do what we say we are going to do”; “We execute 
what we promise”; “We engage in frequent, open, and 
honest communication”; “We give our clients clear and detailed 
schedules and we hold to them”; “We don’t hide behind emails and 
texts …we get face to face to discuss important issues”; “We don’t 
walk into a meeting with a phone stuck in an ear, showing blatant 
disrespect”; “We don’t use excuses as an alternative for solutions”; 
“We are always mindful of the long-term impact of decisions”.

These kinds of responses prove to me that our guys “get it.”  
It’s not about just doing your job … It’s about doing it right, 
maintaining your integrity, and never losing focus on the 
importance of communication. 

How Do We Bring Value to Our Projects?
You may feel that this question is synonymous to the last. That’s 
okay because they are related. You earn trust by listening actively 
and communicating effectively. You bring value by taking what 
you’ve heard and then implementing your knowledge, expertise, 
and lessons learned to better provide what you know the client 

and the project needs. Every project experience provides lessons 
learned. It is our responsibility to remember each one, perhaps even 
document them, and make sure that wisdom is utilized to benefit 
the next opportunity. 

One of my main mantras with my firm is that if we want to be 
considered the only true full-service, design-build firm in the 
market (which we are), we need to consistently act like it. We have 
engineers, BIM specialists, project managers, system installers, 

commissioning specialists, controls specialists, fabricators, and 
service technicians all in-house. If we want to truly bring 

the value that we are expected to bring, we must 
collaborate daily and integrate these unique 

perspectives to better the outcome on 
each assignment. The same goes for 

your firm. Whatever disciplines you 
have in your operation, merging 
experiences, knowledge, and 
creative perspective is always 
valuable. What you should want 
as a firm is the ability to bring 
the best ideas forward to your 

clients … no matter where they 
come from. 

So, in addition to the basics of fully 
understanding your firm’s strengths, 

expertise, unique value, client success 
stories/lessons learned, primary competition, 

internal personalities, and why clients should and do hire you, 
these are the five drivers in my mind as a business development 
leader. When you can instill the importance of them throughout 
your firm, you have successfully created a culture that is built for 
growth and prosperity. That’s when those odd facial expressions 
turn into head nods, high fives, and a productive collegial spirit! 
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It’s not about just doing your job … It’s about doing it right, maintaining your 
integrity, and never losing focus on the importance of communication. 
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